
FIRST CO�HIITTEE 496th 
MEETI G 

Tuesr1"y, 22 January 1 952, at 10 .30 a .,n.  

Palais de Chail lot, Paris 

I

Ad mission of new Men hers, including the right of 
candidate States to pr eut proof of the conditions 
required under Article 4- of th Charter ( A/1887 f Re,• .1 ,  
A/1899, A/ 1 907, A/C. l/702/Rev.l smd A/C.1/703) 
( continued) 

[ ltcm Ge))' 

GENERAL DEBATE (colllinued) 

! .  Mr. HRSEl{'( zccho lovakia) aid that responsibi l i ty
fo r  the deadlock i n  t h e  U n i tr.:-d Nations on the question of
the admi sion of new Mem ers rested entirely with t he
" ,\nglo-Amcrican majori 1 _1 " in the Security Council .

2. The att i tude of that majority was, moreover, inconsistent
with the p rinciple f the uni ,·ersality of the United ations,
, hich it proclaimed on n:ry occasion while at the same
time refusing to vote for the admission of the people's
democracies and a t temptin to obtain the admission of
the countrie which i t  �-iewed benevolently because of their
po l i t ical and social regime . That d iscriminatory po l icy was
a flagrant breach of the Charter. The So viet Union, on the
contrary, was act ing in accordance with i ts rights under
A rticle 27 paragraph 3 of the Charter.

3. The majority in the Council had pushed its d iscrimi
nato ry pol icy to ext remes : for example, the United rates
had proposed in Hl -17 that States should renounce th.e use
of the right of thl· veto in con nexion wit h  the ad mission 
of new Members, and the Argent ine representat i e had 
submitted a proposal at the second session of the Genera l 
Assembly for the cal l ing of a conference under Article 109 
of the Charter wit h a vie · to r vie·wing the hurter 1

• 

Similarly, the General ssembly had twice asked the 
International Court of J ustice to give an a<l visory opin ion 
on the question of  the admission of new Members, a lthough 
the ou rt had no competenc with regard to that q uestion 
or the interpretation of the Charter.  

4 . The represental i...-e of Peru had claimed tha the
third paragrap h of t he draft resolution was based on the
advisory opinion givt:n h y the I nternat ional Co urt of
J ustice on 2X M;1 y l ! i -l� ; hut ir prm· i tkd :in ab olu tely

i! h u. f l cau.· � t h!'..' i t tnl 1 1 u 1 , thL":- f"I d �t· (}cni:rn l A�!u .. ·rnblv a�ir n d ,t .
1 _-;,T dnt..·1unrn 1 •. \ ' 3 , 1 . 

· 

er roneous interpretation of that opinion by stating that 
Art icle 4 paragraph 1 of the Charter was exhaustive. 

5 . The two questions r £erred to the ourt had been
whether a Member of the nited Nation was juridically
ent it led to make his consent to the admission of a new
Member dependent on condition not e:rcpressly provided
by Article 4 paragraph 1 ,  of the Charter, and whether a
Member, while it recognized th condit ions set forth in
Article to  be fulfilled by the State concerned, could
subject i ts affirmative vote to the addit ional condition th.at
other States be ad mitted to mcm bershjp in the Unjted

ations to ether with that State. Those questions had 
been deliberately formulated in such a way as to ensure 
that the rcpl.y should support in principle the view of 
th majority, that is, the United States view. Properly 
formulated, the question should have been as follows : 
was a State entitled to refuse to vote in favou r of mem
bership for a particu lar candidate while voting fo r  other 
candidates whose claim to membership was analogou� to 
that of the first State ? 

6. I t  might be noted that the Court's dvisory opinion
had nevert he less disappointed the hopes of those w ho had
formulated the questions : although the majorit y  of the
Court-nine ju dg -had gi ven a negative reply to the
two questions put to them, it was noteworthy that two
jucigcs, Mr. Alvar z and M r. Azevedo, had appended to 
the ourt's advisory opinion indivi d ual opinions in which
they put forward views difft:ring appreciably from the vie,
of the oth r members of the majority, and i n  fact very
closely resembli ng the opin ion of th.e mi nority, namely,
that while the cond it ions set forth in Article 4, paragraph 1 ,
of the Charter were necessary, and indeed absol utely
essential ,  they were not exhaustive . Consequent ly ,  the
advisory opinion given by the Court could not be consi dered
as expressing the unani mous views of the majority of the
judges, particularl y since account must be taken not only
of the text of the advisory opinion, but a1so of the arguments
advanced by each of the judgt:s. The majority of th Court ,
that is , the minority pl us Mr. A l varez and Mr. Azevedo ,
had suppo rted the Ciechoslovak delegation's v iew that
Artjclc 4 ,  paragraph 1 ,  of the Chart r must be interpreted
libera l ly . That was, moreover, a necessary consequence of
the acllJal tc.xt of the Art icl e ,  which in no way barren
Member� from tak in  i n t  , arrount t he political condi tions

225 

A/C. 1 / R .496 



226 �oeral Assembly-Sixth Session-First Committee 

relating to a candidature. Thus the st1,ndpoint of the Soviet 
Union and of Czechoslovakia had bten confirmed by the 
International Court of Justice. 
7. The draft resolution submitted by the delegation of
Peru ignored those facts. The fourth paragraph of the draft
resolution introduced a new idea; 1hat candidate States
should have the right to present p :oofs of their quali
fication. Paragral?h 2 of the orerative part tried to treat that
right as an obligation. The rea intentic,n of those paragraphs 
as the USSR representative had alre:,dy proved, was that 
an invest.ig.1ation should be made in each case. That method
would make for the automatic admiS! ion of States backed 
by the " Anglo-American majority ". It was flagrantly 
inconsistent with Article 4, paragraph 2, of the Charter, 
which stated that new Members could be admitted only 
upon the recommendation of the Secu1ity Council. 
8. The universality of the United Nations, one of the
alleged objectives of the Peruvian d1aft resolution, could
not be achieved so long as the " Anglo-American majority "
pursued its discriminatory policy, \•·hich it justified by
fictitious arguments. For example, llulgaria and Albania
had been accused of harbouring Gree!; partisans. But that
had nothing to do with the question of the admission of
new Members, since disputes between certain candidates
and certain Member States should not be used as a pretext
for opposing the admission of such candidates. It had been
asserted that the Mongolian People's Republic had diplo
matic relations only with two other f tates, as though the
extent of a country's diplomatic relations could be used as
a criterion for determining whether that country satisfied
the necessary conditions for membership in the United
Nations.
H. The inconsistency of the majori1y case was obvious
when it was considered that that majority had supported
the candidature of a State which had !ought on the side of
the axis Powers during the Second W,,rld War, whereas it
had refused to vote for the admission of Albania and the
Mongolian People's Republic, which tad fought heroically
by the side of the Allies. Similarly, it had recommended
the admission of Austria, with which no treaty of peace
had yet been concluded, whereas it I efused to allow the
admission of Bulgaria, Hungary and F.omania, with which
peace treaties had long ago been sign< d and ratified. Yet
under the terms of those peace treaties the victorious
Powers were required to support the ac mission of the three
States to membership in the United Nations. AU those
facts proved that the " Anglo-Ameri,:an majority " used
dual standards when it came to consic ering the admission
of new Members.
10. The adoption of the Peruvian draft resolution was a
new attempt to violate the Charter, p trticularly in regard
to the principle of the unanimity ol the great Powers, 
which was one of the safeguards of int,:rnational peace and 
security. That principle should thcreiore be respected in 
dealing with the important political question of the admission 
of new Members, and the Security Ccuncil should obtain 
unanimity among the great Powers or. a recommendation 
to admit candidate States. Any attempt to confuse the issue 
or to infringe that princip.le would be calculated to destroy 
the very ideas on which the United N� tions was based. 
11. For those reasons the Czechoslovak delegation would
vote against the Peruvian draft resolutior, (A/C.1/702/Rev.1).
It was convinced that the draft resol 1tion submitted by
the USSR (A/C.1/703) offered the onl_r equitable solution
of the problem consistent with the prirciple of the univer
sality of the United Nations. It wou!tl therefore vote for
that proposal.

12. Mr. POLITIS (Greece) felt that the deadlock in
the United Nations with regard to the admission of new
Members was due to a defect in the operation of the voting
system in the Security Council. The situation should be
remedied as soon as/ossible. The Cuban representative
had already indicate a possible method, and the Greek 
delegation would be prepared to support him as soon as 
concrete proposals were submitted. In the meanwhile 
the immediate problem should be taken up. The elements 
of the problem were to be found in Article 4 of the Charter, 
in the two advisory opinions of the International Court 
of Justice, in the records of the Securi ty Council, and in 
the requests for admission submitted by various States. 
Mr. Politis pointed out that one omission seemed to have 
been made when the applications were listed : the appli
cation of the Republic of Korea, an important one since it 
came from a people fighting for their independence and 
freedom. 
13. The Security Council should have applied in each
case the criteria set forth in Article 4, paragraph 1, of the
Charter. It had, however, been confronted by the attitude
of the USSR delegation, which maintained that those
requests as a whole should be recommended by the Council.
That attitude implied contempt for the provisions of the
Charter, which insisted on dear and specific precautions in
regard to the admission of new Members. Admittedly
the principle of the universality of the United Nations had 
been quoted in support of that attitude. But why should
there be more reason to respect that principle than the
principles set forth in Article 4, paragraph 1 ? Did the
principle of universality imply that the doors of the United
Nations should be left open to all without formalitv ?
Article 4, on the contrary, attached certain clearly specified
conditions to the universality of the United Nations.
14. There were in the world rebel States just as there
were rebel individuals. He could give examples. A State
laid mines in important sea routes and foreign ships ran
into those mines. There were many casualties and con
siderable material damage was done. The guilty State, on
being tried and condemned by the International Court of
Justice, refused to accept the Court's decision. The same
State used mines and guns to prevent navigation in tl1e
territorial waters of a neighbouring State. If the latter
took actjon, it would find itself involved in a armed conflict.
15. Another State undertook, in virtue of a treaty, various
obligations, in particular towards its neighbours. It totally
disregarded the treaty and even refused to have anything
to do with its neighbours.
16. A number of other States plotted against a third.
The fact was established by United Nations organs. The
United Nations condemned those States, whereupon
the latter declared that the action of the United Nations
was illegal and continued their plotting. Tens of thousands
of children were carried away from their families, and
thousands of hostages were held in those States. The
United Nations condemned such practices. The Inter
national Red Cross and the League of Red Cross Societies
appealed to reason and humanity. All those efforts were
spumed.
17. The facts dted by .Mr. Politis were all clearly set
forth in United at.ions documents. Could it be asserted
that the States in question had proved that they fulfilled
the conditions for admission required under Article 4 of
the Charter ? Would they deserve to be admitted to the
United Nations under a collective arrangement proposed
in the name of the principle of universality ? Such a
suggestion was inconsistent with the Charter and must he
rejected.



496th M ting-22 January 1952 227 

l · . On the basis of such ideas, the G reek delegation a reed
� i th th gui in pri n ipl of he draft resol ut ion submitt d
by t l sc Peru ian tide ation. lt haJ , howe\·er, reservat i n
to make en certai n detai ls .

10 . The �ubmission of e,·iJcnce b_ an applicant tale
establishing i ts qual ifil.-ations did not seem to be an adequate
guarantee, b cause the factor on which the judgment of
the nitcd ation,; must be based was the conduct of a
. ' cate , and uch co1 1du t roust above a l l  be i n  keeping wi th
the  Charter. I t  \\ as iflicu l t  10  i ma inc any applicant State
u bmittin , e,·itlence of that k ind .  'J 'he most , hich could

be done wa to pro\'idc that an applicant tatc shou ld be 
heard i f  t he ni tcd Nations dccmt:<l i t  necessary. l t  was 
probably f u r  t ho c reasons thi 1 l  the P r  p.iratory mmis ion 
of the 1 n i tctl Nations hnd decided not co list the t:vidcm:c 
required of a • tat to qual ify and t h:11 it  had <lt:c i dcd co 
abide by the ex isting tc. t of Anicle •I .  

20. A t  all \'e nts he main th ing was to r min t h  ecu rity
ounci l  of its obl igation to con i er  each re4ut::st for

ad mis ion separately and to judge each of them on i ts 
own merits. 

2 1 . t r  . .  I N  ' I C Yugo:;hn i.i) trc:ssctl that th quc tion 
of a mittin new . embers '-\'ai of particular i ntcre t to 
his count ry, �incc only one of the St::\"n tates adjacent 
to Yu oslavia was a M mbc r of t h  Tnjted ations, while 
the application · of th� other i\'. were pending. 

22. !\ new effort should be made to break the tl<: d lock
in t h  ni ted ·ations on th:u que. t ion .  The problem, , hich
was polit ical i n  i ts origi n and in its e lf ct cou ld not be
solved on a juridical , but only on :i pol i t ical, basis .  The
polit ical lurion mu t be the admi kin of the applicant 
States as a group,  and it  should b noted that an inc reasing 
nu mber of representa1 iv s appeared to shar that view. 

23. Although Y ugo )a \· ia recognized that all of those States
did not ful fil to the am extent the  condit ions required
under Article 4 of th Charter-and, in part icular, that 
some of its neighbou rs did not shO\ any rdent desire for 
peace or any con i tent re pe t for their int mational 
obligations-it would not oppo e their  admis ion. It would 
adopt that att itude not only to faci l itate the col lective 
solution which it advocated, bu t  al. o because it felt that 
such a course would m kc i t  easi e r  to establish normal 
r lations with the tc in 9u�ti  .n and woul thus serve
the cau c of peace and sc umy in Its pa rt of the world.  

24. Only such a solution would con tribute to the uni\'er
sality which the nite , ation hould achieve if it  tlid not
, ish to ee its po i i l i t i  for ct i n seriously impai red. 
Admitted! the Charter nowhere rcferr d to the concept 
of the uni versal ity of  the · n i ted 'ations ; but i t  should be 
remembered that ,  in th day of an Francisco, the 
e. pression " l . ni tcd . "ations " had st i l l been synonymous
with a mil i tary al l ian • .  How \" r , i f  r ferencc were made
to Art icle 2, _paragraph Ci, of the harter deal ing with
non-member St. t , it seemed that the author had been 
already a, ar of the disadvantages re ult ing from the 
absence of some of the t t of the world. The character 
of the Organi?.at ion had inc developed , and he need for 
uni ersaliry hac.l become more compell in than ner. 
25. For t ho e re ns t h  Yugosla delegat ion would
support any proposal , hich recommended that the Security
Council should vote for the applicant  tatcs as a group .

26. Mr. CI T R H • KO ( Dye lorus ian So,·iet Socia
l ist Republic) considered the dr:ift resolution submi tted 
by the Peruv ian  de legat ion to he a new :mempt by the 
represcntaci \'C:S of th " • nglo-Am .rican bloc ", headed 
by the United States of America, to settle the question of 

admitt in new embers not only by disreganJing, but even 
y ,·i 13 in$, the rel  van p rO\•isions of the Cbaner. The 

primary bJc.:Cl , a to circum enc the provision of Anicle 4, 
p ra •raph 2 of the haner, which se forth clearly that the 
Gencr:11 \sscnlbly should decide on the admi ion or an 
applica1 1  la te upon the recommenda ion of the Security 

• u nei l .  The olombian repr en at ive had gone so far 
as L as ert that, if the S um Council did not submit a
recommendat ion, the General Assembly could decide
u ni lateral ly. uch statements were contrary to the Charter
und rcr.rc nted u new attempt to ci rcumvent the Security

ou m.:i l .  
27 . ' I he Cuban representati ve had stated a t  the 
-15 th meeting t hat the I nternat ional Court of J u  L ice had
not clarified the matt r of the applie t ion of the prin iple 
of the unanimity of ch gr at Powers in the ccu r i ty  Council 
with rtgar<l 10 the admission of new Members. Although 
the Byelorussian del gation s t i l l  maintained the view that 
the I nternat ional Court of Just ice wa not competent 
to de I with the matter, it felt obliged to recal l  the ad visory 
opin ion gi\' ·n by the Court on 3 forch 1 - o ' · According 
to that opi nion a tate could not be admitted to membership 
in the nited . ations, under Article 4, paragraph 2, of  the 

han r, by a decision of the General A mbly when the 
• •curity Council  had not recommended its ad.mis ion,

either beca e the applicant State had not obtained the 
required majorit or becaus a permanent ember had 
\'Oted against a resolution recommending its admission. 
28. As al re d how n by t he representative of the Soviet

nion, the Peruvian propo al , as not in keeping with the 
pro i ion of th Charte r or with t he rules of procedure 
of the Security Council  and of the Gene ral scmbl . It 
wa intended to make way for the admi ion to the nited 
1 ations of certain tales which enjoyed the support of 
the United tates and, at the sa me t ime, to prevent the 
admission of Albania, the People' Republic of ongolia, 
Bulgaria, Romania and Hu nga ry. Article 4. of the Charter 
did not provide that a tale should submit documents i n  
support of i t  qualification a s  a Member of the nited 

at1ons.  Nor wa any such obligation to be found in the 
provisional ru les of proc dure of the cu rity Council nor of 
the General Assembly. The sponsors of the Peruvian draft 
resolution had ob iously acted not on the basis of Article 4 
of the Charter but � r qu i te different re ns. 
29. He pointed out  th t the delegations of El Salvador,
Guatemala ,  and Honduras, in t he i r  explanatory note
regarding the r que t t hat the i tem hould be included in
the agenda of the current ses ion of the G ncral Assembly
( / 1 9  6) , had xprcs d the hop th.at tates, , ith which
the · had common racial ,  pol i t ical or cial  tie , would be
admitted, although no such cri terion was to be found in
Article of the ha rter. l f  th thr e 'tates really wished
to expedhe the admi ion of the State , ith which they had
common t ies, h y hou ld not i mped the admission of
other demo tic tales .
30. On the oth r hand, th dr2 ft resolution s.u bmitted
by the SR d legation (A/ , 1 /703) pointed to a solution
of the problem. The propo al s that all the applicant
States should be admitt d � ithout discrimination.  cveral
representat i\'es, particularly the yrian representative, had
al ready advocat d t e adopt ion of t hat method. That
propo al, w hich was ba cd on the clear and simple provisions 
of the Charter ,  would make it possi le to solve the problem 
fairly and without delay. Th d1 I t ion of t he Byelorussian 
SSR would therefore vote for it and a i nst the draft 
resolution submitted by the Peruvian delegation. 

1 s�c Comp1Wl(I of 1 l1t Gm•ral A,w11biy Jo, th• admusion of a State lo 
th, Uniud Nations Ad1.,'10,y Oplm'on I J .C.] ,  Repor11 l 9SO, p, •· 



228 General Assembly-Sixth S ion-First Committee 
----------------

31. Mr. Q EVEDO (Ecuador} wai. afraid that the
opposition shown not only to the entry of all States to the
United ations but even to the admiss on of a few might
constitute an obstacle to the achieve.JL ent of satisfactory
results and render the debate fruitless.
32. The delegation of Ecuador had consistently supported
the principle of universality. It  had, in 1948, slated in the
Ad Hoc l:'olitical Committee that it sh• >u ld u l t imately be
obligatory for all States to become Merr llers of the · nited
Nations. Recently, moreover, the rep res, :ntative of Ecuador 
in the Security Council had said that t 1e nited N at ions 
should aim at universality, since it wodd be far easier to 
maintain peace and security if all peace- loving States were 
members of the Organization. He had added that, where 
any doubt existed as to the qualifications of a State applying 
for membership, it should be given t he b !ncfit of the doubt , 
since its admission might po sibly lead to a change in its 
policy. 
33. It was probably unnecessary for the General As embly
to consider the applications of �tates for whose admission
it had already voted. It wouJc.1, howcvn, be useful if the
Assembly were to reconsider the appli :acions which had
not hitherto obtained a favourable von , since a changed
situation might possibly result in a c hange of altitude
toward those States on the part of Lh Ge era( Assembly.
34. Clearly, in spite of the precedents. doubts had been
expressed and stil l  remained as to the .oustruction to be
placed on the Security Co uncil 's \'Ole w he n  it had considered
the admission of a new M ember-a c onstruerion which
hinged upon the interp retation gi vcu to A rtid es •I , :.u and 27
of the Charter.  The advisory opinion o f  the International
Court of J ustice of 28 May l \J-1 8 3 fu ·t h r str ngthened
such doubts, and the opinion of  the Cou n  of :3 March 1 050 '
left the fundamental question unsolved, as it was based on
the premise of the absence of any recommendation hy the
Council. If the Court had been requ i c cd to reply to the
quest ion whether the negative vote of a permanent Member
was sufficient to invalidate a recommt:ncfa tion of the Council
which had recei ved at  least seven fav, mrable votes, the
question would have been finally decid !d-unfortunately,
however, the Court had not been askt ·d to an wer that
question . 
35. If the Assembly wished to interpret the provisions of
the Charter relating to the voting in th1 : ecurity ouncil 
on a recommendation for the ad mi iou of new Ylcmbcrs, 
it should bear in mind the lace th: l it had a l ready 
established a series of rulings on the niattc.:r by adopt ing 
resolutions 1 13 ( I I) , 197 ( 1 1 1  ) , and 206 I I 
36. By its resolution 1 1 :i  A ( 1 1 ) the 3encral e.mbly
in effect recommended that th five p rmanent members
of the Security Counc i l  should consu l t  with a view to
reaching agreement on the recommend: tion of applicants
which had made a previous request au . whose admission
had not been recommended. That meant that the Assembly
had believed that the Secmitv Council's recommendations
required the affirmative vote of all ti· e five permanent
members . Resolution 1 07 ( I l l) and re ,ol ut ion 20G ( IV) ,
of the General Asse m b ly we.re based on the same inter
pretation.
37. Moreover,  every delegation had tat en up its position
on the matter in the past . Th us, if the Assembly wished
to reconsider the caselaw it had csta lisheu, new and
convincing arguments would have to be Sl bmitted . .Fu rther
mo.re , a new interpretation by tbe General Assembly

• ::ice Admiuio11 of a Siar� to tis� U11ittd .'Va1 io 1 r.s  Cha, ler, ( Artirft 4 ) ,

.-ldti,o,y Opinion : I .C.J , R�porrs 194 , p. 57 .  
• See footnote a .

could obviously, in no circumstances, contradict the 
provisions of the Charter. At any rate, the de! gat ion of 
Ecuador would be unable to go to such lengths. Unde r  
those conditions, a decision regarding a change i n  the 
interpretation of Article 4 could only be taken after a 
thorough study, which would make it plain to al l  that no 
infringement of the United Nations Charter was implied. 
In any case, the delegation of Ecuador was not prepared 
at the present juncture to make any definitive statement on 
the matter. 
38. In mak i ng those observations, the delegation o f
Ecuador d i d  not wish c o  imply that any of the draft:l
submitted were inconsistent with the Charte r. It reserved
the right to comment at a later stage on the various draft
resolutions and amendments which had been, or  would
be , submitted. It  considered that the Peruvian draft
resolution did not imply any change of interpretation with
regard to the Security Council 's recommendation on the
admission of new Members nor any obligation on the part
of the General Assembly to adoet or reject the Security
Council's further decision. I n  tts opiniou, the existing
atmosphere of mistrust was not cry propitious for the
admission of new Membe ra. The best solution wou ld
probably be a political one, namely an agreement berween
the five permanent members of the Counci l .  That solution ,
however, also appeared improbable as matters tood.

39. The delegation of Ecuador regretted that all the States
whose admission had already been recommended by the
General Assembly had not yet become Members of the
United Nations. It particularly deplored the absence of
I taly, whose application had been supported by an enormous
majority, of the Republic of Korea, which at present con
stituted the touchstone of the Organization, and of Libya,
whose accession to independence was due to the United
Nations.
40. Sir Gladwyn JEBB (United Kingdom) congratulated
Mr. Belaunde on his admirable speech (494th meeting),
which had done much towards clar i fying the problem. The
Peruvian draft resolution had the essential merit of avoiding
both the danger of stagnation and the st i l l  greater danger
of a lack of moderat ion.
4 1 .  The United Kingdom delegation would vote fo r  the 
Peruvian draft resolution-subject to the omission of a 
word in paragraph 5 of the operative part , as those proposals 
were founded on the principle of object ivity recognized by 
the International Court of J ustice in its opinion of 
28 lay 1948. 
42. That principle of objectivity implied that appl ications
should be examined impartially and that Members should
base themselves solelY. on whether t he applicants fulfilled
the conditions prescnbed in Article 4 of the Charter. It
was not always easy to ascertain whether an applicant
fulfilled those conditions. · Tevertbeless, the admission of a
State should not be made to depend upon conditions not
prescribed in Article 4 , such as the polit ical character of the 
applicant . T he International Court of J ustice in its opinion 
of 28 May 1 94 8, and the General Assembly in its resolu
tion 197 ( I I I) , had stipulated that in no case should the 
request for admission by a State be rejected for reasons not 
provided for by Article 4.  
43. The facts mentioned in the second paragraph and
in paragraph 2 of the operative �art and of the Peruvian
draft resolution were not limitat1ve. Those facts should
undoubtedly be considered whenever the application of a
State was examined and the re was every reason to suppose
that the competent bodies of the United Nations had taken
them into account in the past. There was no harm in



4-9611.i !Uocti.og-22 January 1952 229 

drawing attention to those facts. However, it was also 48. The USSR draft resolu tion was unnecessary since
necessary to take into accou nt the pol i t ical element to which the last paragraph of the Peruvian draft resolution recom
the S R representative had re ferred , as at times, in spite mended that the Counci l should reconsider all pending 
of their desire to be objective, the members of the Security appl icat ions for membership. That p rovision was surely 
Counci l  introduced an element of polit ical appreciation when preferable to the correspondin provision of the U SSR 
they came to consider the evidence, albeit of  a concrete draft resol ution, which excluded the consideration of the 
nature , which was submitted to them. Consequently, it request for admission of the Republic of Korea. If, there
would be desirable to amend paragraph 1 of the operative fore, the Peruvian draft resolution were adopted, the USSR 
part, of the Peruvian draft resolution by deleting the word draft r solution would become otio e. 
" 1·uridical " .  

4.t . I t  had been primarily because of that political factor 
that the Charter had laid down that the Security Council, 
which bore the main responsibility for maintaining inter
national peace and security, should be requi red to make 
a pr vious recommendation to the cneral Assembly 
regarding the admission of new Members. In that 
connexion, t he rule of the veto had given rise to criticism. 

uch criticism, hov,·ever, did not affect the problem under 
co nsiderat ion.  

45 . The Cuban representative bel ie\'ed t hat the might of
veto should not be exercised when the Security Council
made a recommendation on the admission of an applicant.
The nited K ingdom delegation, however, did not consider
that to be the asc and bAlie\'cd that thcr \� s the clearest
legal indication that no applicant could be admitted against
the formal negat ive vote of one of the permanent members
of the curity Council .  The nited Kingdom delegation
had al ready stated that it  would not exercise i ts right of
veto and would confine itself to abstaining in the case of an
app l icant having the support of certai n other members of the
Counci l .  That view was shared b y  the majority o f  the
perma nent members, and i t  was to be hoped t hat it would
eventual ly be accepted by a l l  of th m. • c\·ertheless , as the
Internat ional Court of Just ice ha<l i ndicated, the negative
vote of a permanent member would only be i l l egal if it
had be n cast for reasons other than thos laid down in
Article 4 of the Charter.

4<.I. ff t he Peruvian draft rc,sol u t ion \\ ere amended in 
such a wa as no longer to be based olely on juridical 
criteria but a lso to take into account pol it ical clements, 
its original ity would reside in the fact that, as a general rule, 
appl icants would be requi red to submit  evidenc£: in favou r 
of the i r  applications . However, the subm ission of such 
cviden e should be optional since, in the past, many States 
had bl:cn admitted without submi tt ing any evidence.  
Fu rt hc.:rm r · ,  i i  1\·.1:1 poss ib le  tha t certain applicants might 
not h ve c-oncludc-u non-aggression treat ies  or that, indeed, 
they might prder thei r evi dence not to be publicly examined 
by Member States with which they might not at the moment 
be on very fricndJy terms. Consequently, some appl icants 
migh hesi tate to supply oral 1:videncc. evertheless, there 
should be not hing to prevent the applicant who wished 
to supply u1.:h e\· idence from o doing. 

47 . Th fniu:d Kingdom delegat ion agai n rejetted 
the US 'R represell tative's suggest ion that the U nited States 
and t he Unit d Kingdom delegations were responsible 
for the existing deadlock because, as he put i t ,  they had 
discr in i in.a tc-<l again:,t certain applicant Stat ·s .  The Uni ted 
Kingdom <lei gation hau confi ned itse lf to withholding i ts 
support fro 1n  1 hose of the appli cants which it had considered 
did not ful fil t he comiitions prescri bed in Arti cle 4 of the 
Charter .  It had ,  moreover bet:n supported in  that atti rudc 
by a larg majority,  both in the Counci l  and in the sembly. 
On the contr:iry it  wa.,; the exercise of the v to by the So\"iet 
Union, even a a in  · t those applicant whi h it did not 
profess to re�anl �-1 not fu lfilling the condit ions prescribed 
i n  r\ rL id 4, whk h had bt'm rtSpon,-ible fo r  t hL: deadJock. 

49. The United Kingdom del
eg

ation would vote against
the R draft resolution if it 1mplied that the Security
Cou nci l would accept en blac al l the States mentioned.
However, as it did not consider that the draft resolution
thus prejudged the attitude which the members of the
Secu nty Council might adopt ,  t he "nited Kingdom dele
gat ion wou ld  abstain.
60. As the Chi lean representative had already remarked ,
universal ity, although clearly one of the aims of the United
Nations, did not constitute an immediate aim laid down
by the Charter. As Mr. Eden had stated on several occasions,
everything should be done to broaden the basis of tht:

nited Nations. It was to be hoped, therefore, that the 
Secur i ty Council would find it po sible to agree on a 
recommendation to adm it at le0$t some of the applicants. 
The cont inued exclusion of Italy and eylon was a flagrant 
instance of the inability of the U SR delegation to apply 
the principle of objectivity to its considerations of inJivjdual 
cases. 
3 1 . Mr.  SHCHERBATYUK ( krainian Soviet Socialist 
Republ ic) recalled that , since l 946, the question of t he 
admission of new Members hac l consumtl y appeared 
on t he general Assembly's agenda. The question of the 
adm is ion of fourteen states was on e again before the 
Assembly. Some of them had appl ied for admission :1.9 
early a 1 946 and 1 947 . Their appl ications had been 
t:xamined by the Security Council and the General Assembly, 
but th y had not obtai ned mem er hip owing to the 
oppo ition of the nited . tates anti ome other States 
belonging to the · Anglo-American bloc " . 
52. The delegation of th1: Ukrai nian . R, i n  i ts desire to
strengthen the U nited �ations, had voted at the fifth
session for the USSR dra ft  resolut ion proposing the simul
taneous admission of thirteen States ). The Tnited K i ngdom
and lnitec. l  States delegations had, however ,  taken up the
unacceptable posit ion that only States within their pol itical
and conomic sphere of i n t1uence or belonging to the
aggressive " Atlantic bloc " werl! eli ibl for admission.
53. G reat harm had bct-n done to the nited ations
by that att itude. ln particular, the refusal to accept the
applications of Albania, Bulgaria, Hun1;<3ry, the Mongolian
People's R publ ic  and Romania "·a um ammted, and
constituted an act of discrimination and an infrin_gement
of the peace treaties concl uded with Bulgaria, Hungary
and Romania. The United States !tad no real desire to see
independent countries admjtted to the United ations.
It had , th •refore, exerted pressure to secu re t he rejection
of the USSR J raft resolution for the si mul taneous admiss ion
of t he thi rteen States . Criticism of that :1ttitudc had been
steadi ly growing and the Syrian rcprest:n tat ive had in
part icu lar poim d out its i nconsistency.
54 . The Peruvian draft resolution did not indicate the 
right way to br ak the deadlock ; on the ontrary, i t  compli
cated matters by creating addi ional di fficult ie . The 
adm i sion f new embe rs m ight be opp sed on the 

• Sec Offitial ll ,ards a/ the Ge,1oral Aum,bly, P/flh Senion, A11nt.�e1, 
Ag,md3 item 1 9, doc,ument A/ 1 577. 



230 General , l  mbly -Si1:th Se  sion-Fir t Committee 

pretext that the evidence was deemed to be i nadequate. 
Besides, neither the Charter nor the r 1les of procedure 
of the Assemb ly or the Secu rity Cou n  ;i i stipulated that 
States had to provide proof of thei r l i tness. In tho 
circumstances, the Peruvian draft resolu jon was an unde
niab le att mpt to pursue in another fc rm the policy of 
discrimination against the people's dem0t -racies. 
55 . The Peruvian representative claimed t hat the adm ission
of new Members must be ba ed on juridi -al considerations . 
But, as the SSR representative had ,tated, such con • 
siderations did not form the basis of t he  draft resol ut ion 
submitted by Peru. On the other hand , the SSR draft 
resolution was equitable, impartial ar d in conformity 
with the Charter. S ince t l1e United Stat ss and the Uni ted 
Kingdom were attempting to prevent the admission of 
Albania,  Bulgaria, Hungary, Mongolian People's Republic 
and Romania, the USSR draft resolution rightly rec-0m
mended that the Secu ri tv Council shou. d re-exam ine the 
applications of the thirteen States which had already 
applied for membersh.ip, together with the candidature 
of Libya. 
56. Th delegation of the Ukrainian 1; R would vote for 
the R draft resolu tion and against the Peruvian draft 
resolut ion .  
57. Mr.  M NOZ (Arg nlina) recal led cl  a t  his delegat ion's 
posit ion on the principles involved had ! ong been known .
First , i t  i nterpreted Article 4 o f  the Cl arter a s  meaning 
that the recommendation of the Cou m:i l < lid not necessari ly 
imply a fa\'Ou rable op i nion. Furthermor , as the Argenti ne 
repres ntati ,·e had explain d at previou , sessions and as 
the Cuban representativ had recen tly stated, the de legation 
of Argrnti na felt that the right of veto ilhould not apply to 
the adm ission of new 1cmbers. He ad :l.ed that the veto 
should not be ui-ed whenever there \\'3!' anv doubt as to 
whether it  was or was not appl icab le, bec 1use any privilege 
should b interpreted in a restrictive sen ,e . 
58. At an Francisco, t he Committee of J urists had said 
that nothing i n  the d n ft r f Article 4 of the ::harter precluded
the Gen rat Assembl y from rejecti ng an ;ipplicat ion wh ich 
had been recommended by the Security Council .  In the 
same way, the General S"�mhly m i  h a dmit  a State even 
if the Counci l  had previously cxpr ed an unfavou rable 
opinion. That interpretation had been officiaHy adopted 
by the Conference antl the only argu ment used t refute 
it subsequently in the G <.'neral Assembly h <l been that there 
was a mistake i n  r h c  declaration of the Committee of 
Jurists. 
59. evcrtheless, a l though in the opinion of the Argenti ne
delegation the quest ion was quite clear and there could 
be no possible doubt on the matter, the 1 }eneral embly 
had not accepted that thesis.  An effort must th-.:re fore 
be mad to solve the problem on practicd lines . 
60. The Peruvian d raft resol ution ( A/C. 1/702/Re ,· . 1 )
was a erious attempt o do so, since i t  rovide,d t hat the

Prtnted in Frmce 

General ssembly shou ld take a definitive decision on t he 
matter .  Fu rthermore, that dec ision should be adopted 
at the earl iest possible date. 
61 . The Argentine deleg-.uion had accordingly submit ted
an amendment (A/C. 1 /704) to the draft resolution submitted 
by Peru cal ling for the addit ion of the followi ng paragraph.

" 4 . Decides that , on receipt of the evi dence to which 
parag raph 2 refers, aud not later than 1 5  March 1952, 
the General Assembly sh:i l l  be convened in special 
session with a ,·icw to the satisfactorv solution of th 
problem of the admission of new er:iber ".  

62 . The provision requ i ri ng appl icants to fu rnish evidence 
would not of rnurse apply to such States as Italy which,
as the Gen ra1 Assembly had ,dready reeos.ni;r,ed in various 
resolutions, fulfilled the conditions prescribed in Articl 4
of the Charter. Nevertheless, the Argent ine delegation, 
knm ing the Perm·ian r pre ('ntatiYe's view on the point ,  
had refra ined from i::ubmitt ing an amentlment. It , ould, 
however, ha ve l ilted I taly to be made the su bject of a special 
resolu tion by reason of its moral stand i ng and the r spon
sibil ities deyolving 011 i t  as a Power adm i nister i ng a trust 
teqito ry. 
63. The rgentinc dc lega ion con idcred that the · s R 
draft resolution (Ai . 1 /70a) offered a means of obtaining 
a recommendat ion from rhe Secu rity Counci l in respect 
of all appl icants. That m thod wou l d  al low the p roblem 
to be resol ved in a spi r i t  of conc i l iat i o n .  Nevertheles , the 
principl of universal ity, rather than adm ii-sion by roup, 
shou ld b pursued . loreo\·er a t i me-limit shou ld be 
fixed so that the problem might b ' soh·ed during the 
Assembly session . 
64.-r' The refore, . the je}eg;ition of Argentina presented. an 
amendment (A/C. 1 / , O., ) to the USSR draft resolut ion, 
wh ich called for th · add it ion to the prcnmblr of the fol lowi ng 
paragraph 

" .\'oti11g the i ncrci.lSi r tg �cneral nt i mcnt in fa our 
of thP u ni versal i ty of the Cnited • ·ations, m..-:mbcrshi p 
in which i s  open to all peace-loving states which accept 
tho ob i igat ions  contained in t he hartci; and, i n  the 
judgment of th Organization , ar ab le  and wi l l i ng to 
carry ot: t those obl igation. ' '  

and for the addition 11.t the end o f  th opera tive part of 
folJo,, i ng t he word : 

. " and repnrt to the  Genrml As$c mbly du ring its 
s ix th ::\1).ssion " .  

65 . I I any case, whet her the General A);Scmbly hose
the method proposed by the Peruvian draft resolu tion or
the one nvisaged in the USSR draft resolution, the main
considerat ion was that it  should not postpo ne inddini tely
the sol ution of the problem . 

The I eet in , rose at 1 .  - p .m . 

D-9 1 00-FebrJs�· 1 9 5 2  -3 ,6oo




